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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

ELLA SHARON
on behalf of herself and
all other similarly situated consumers

Plaintiff,
-against-
MIDLAND CREDIT MANAGEMENT, INC.,

MIDLAND FUNDING, LLC, AND
ENCORE CAPITAL GROUP, INC.
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Defendants.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Introduction

Plaintiff Ella Sharon seeks redress for the illegal practices of Midland Credit
Management, Inc., Midland Funding, LLC, and Encore Capital Group, Inc. concerning
the collection of debts, in violation of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C.
§ 1692, et seq. (“FDCPA”™).

Parties
Plaintiff is a citizen of the State of New York who resides within this District.
Plaintiff is a consumer as that term is defined by Section 1692(a)(3) of the FDCPA, in
that the alleged debt that Defendants sought to collect from Plaintiff is a defaulted
consumer debt.
Defendant Midland Credit Management, Inc. is an affiliate of Defendant Midland
Funding, LLC and is also a “debt collector” as that term is defined by the FDCPA, 15

U.S.C. § 1692(a)(6).
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Defendant Midland Credit Management, Inc. is engaged in the business of collecting or
attempting to collect debts on behalf of Midland Funding, LLC as one of its principal
areas of business.
Defendant Encore Capital Group, Inc. is the parent company of Midland Credit
Management, Inc. and Midland Funding, LLC.
Upon information and belief, Defendants’ principal place of business is located in San
Diego, California.
Defendants are regularly engaged, for profit, in the collection of debts allegedly owed by
consumers.
Jurisdiction and Venue

This Court has federal question jurisdiction under 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(d) and 28 U.S.C. §
1331.
Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), as the acts and
transactions that give rise to this action occurred, in substantial part, in this district.

Allegations Particular to Ella Sharon
Upon information and belief, on a date better known by Defendants, Defendants began
to attempt to collect an alleged consumer debt from the Plaintiff.
On or about January 18, 2017, Defendant sent the Plaintiff a collection letter.
The said letter stated that “Midland Credit Management, Inc. is considering forwarding
this account to an attorney in your state for possible litigation . . . 1f we don’t hear from
you or receive payment by 03-04-2017, we may proceed with forwarding this account to
an attorney.”

The FDCPA prohibits a debt collector from using “any false, deceptive, or misleading



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Case 1:18-cv-00385 Document 1 Filed 01/19/18 Page 3 of 10 PagelD #: 3

representation or means” to collect a debt. The FDCPA enumerates a number of
categories including the following:

(5) The threat to take any action that cannot legally be take or that
is not intended to be taken.

(10) The use of any false representation or deceptive means to

collect or attempt to collect any debt or to obtain information

concerning a consumer.
The said letter threatened to take action against the Plaintiff if she did not pay her
alleged debt, but the Defendants had no actual intention to do so.
The Defendants had no intention of taking such action as the letter’s 03-04-2017
deadline passed by and the Defendants sent the Plaintiff a mere follow-up letter on or
about February 10, 2017.
The Defendants’ statement in the said letter of “possible litigation” and “we may
proceed with forwarding this account to an attorney”, constituted an empty threat of
legal action in order to scare the Plaintiff into paying the alleged debt.*
The said letter’s statements could be understood by the least sophisticated consumer as a
threat of legal action in the event of non-payment.
Furthermore, the least sophisticated consumer could reasonably interpret the said

language as implying that the Defendant would in fact forward the said debt to an

attorney in the event of non-payment.>

! see Gifford v. Midland Credit Mgmt., 2011 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 88191, 2011 WL 3476803 (C.D. Cal. Aug. 8, 2011). (The Court finds that the
language in the letter at issue herein is more suggestive of imminent litigation than the language considered in some of the other cases referred
to by defendant.), Samples v. Midland Credit Management, Inc., No. 3: 12-cv-00099 (M.D. Tenn. July 2, 2012). (Thus, interpreting the alleged
facts in the light most favorable to [Defendant], the court finds that the [Defendant’s] Collection Letter could be subject to more than one
reasonable interpretation, including a threat of potential legal action, which could constitute a violation of § 1692e(5), if the defendants did not
actually intend to take that threatened action.), Larsen v. JBC Legal Grp., P.C., 533 Supp. 2d 290, 302 (E.D.N.Y. 2008). (citing Bentley v. Great
Lakes Collection Bureau, 6 F.3d 60, 62-63 (2d Cir. 1993)). (This provision is designed to prevent "empty threats of litigation as a means of

scaring the debtor into payment."), Jenkins v. Union Corp., 999 F. Supp. 1120 (N.D. Ill. 1998), Brown v. Card Serv. Ctr., 464 F.3d 450, 455 (3d
Cir. 2006) ("[1]t would be deceptive under the FDCPA for [defendant] to assert that it could take an action that it had no intention of taking and
has never or very rarely taken before.")

2 Euller v. Midland Credit Management, Inc., No. 11 C 5111 (N.D. 1ll. Mar. 6, 2014)
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The Defendants January 18, 2017 letter violated 15 U.S.C. 88 1692¢(5) and 1692e(10)
for threatening to take legal action against the Plaintiff without actually intending to do
so, and for the use of false and deceptive practices.

The January 18, 2017 letter further stated: “You are hereby notified that a negative
report on your credit record may be submitted to a credit reporting agency if you fail to
meet the terms of your credit obligations.”

Said language is including, but not limited to, a threat to take unintended an action that
is beyond letter communications.

Such a statement that the Defendants would report information regarding the account to
credit agencies was a tactic to scare the Plaintiff and the least sophisticated consumer
into paying the debt.

Furthermore, it is a violation of the FDCPA to include language in a letter that
overshadows the required 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢ statement.

The said language overshadowed and contradicted the validation notice stated above it

in the letter, and was misleading. See McStay v. I.C. System, Inc., 308 F.3d 188, 191

(2d Cir.2002) ("Finding Plaintiff’s argument that a Debt collectors threat to report the
debt to the National Credit Reporting Agencies had overshadowed and contradicted the
validation notice was a significant argument but declined to consider the issue since it
was raised the first time on appeal."”)

Defendants’ January 18, 2017 letter is in violation of 15 U.S.C. 88 1692e, 1692¢(5),
1692e(8), 1692¢(10), 1692f and 16929, for making false and deceptive threats of credit
reporting by stating false credit information which further overshadowed the Plaintiff’s

validation rights.
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Plaintiff suffered injury in fact by being subjected to unfair and abusive practices of
Defendants.

Plaintiff suffered actual harm by being the target of the Defendants' misleading debt
collection communications.

Defendants violated the Plaintiff's right not to be the target of misleading debt collection
communications.

Defendants violated the Plaintiff's right to a truthful and fair debt collection process.
Defendants used materially false, deceptive, misleading representations and means in its
attempted collection of Plaintiff's alleged debt.

Defendants' communications were designed to cause the debtor to suffer a harmful
disadvantage in charting a course of action in response to Defendants' collection efforts.
The FDCPA ensures that consumers are fully and truthfully apprised of the facts and of
their rights, the act enables them to understand, make informed decisions about, and
participate fully and meaningfully in the debt collection process. The purpose of the
FDCPA is to provide information that helps consumers to choose intelligently. The
Defendants' false representations misled the Plaintiff in a manner that deprived her of
her right to enjoy these benefits, these materially misleading statements trigger liability
under section 1692e of the Act.

These deceptive communications additionally violated the FDCPA since they frustrate
the consumer’s ability to intelligently choose his or her response.

As an actual and proximate result of the acts and omissions of the Defendants, Plaintiff
has suffered, including but not limited to, fear, stress, mental anguish, emotional stress

and acute embarrassment for which she should be compensated in an amount to be
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established by a jury at trial.

AS AND FOR A CAUSE OF ACTION
Violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act brought by Plaintiff on behalf of herself and the

members of a class, as against the Defendants.

36.  Plaintiff re-states, re-alleges, and incorporates herein by reference, paragraphs one (1)
through thirty five (35) as if set forth fully in this cause of action.

37.  This cause of action is brought on behalf of Plaintiff and the members of a class.

38.  The class consists of all persons whom Defendants' records reflect resided in the State of
New York and who were sent a collection letter in substantially the same form letter as
the letter sent to the Plaintiff on or about January 18, 2017; and (a) the collection letter
was sent to a consumer seeking payment of a personal debt purportedly owed to
Comenity Capital Bank; and (b) the collection letter was not returned by the postal
service as undelivered; (c) and the Plaintiff asserts that the letter contained violations of
15 U.S.C. 88 1692e, 1692e(5), 1692¢e(8), 1692e(10), 1692f and 1692g, for threatening to
take action that was not intended to be taken and for making false and deceptive threats
of credit reporting by stating false credit information which further overshadowed the
Plaintiff’s validation rights.

39.  Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23, a class action is appropriate and
preferable in this case because:

A. Based on the fact that a form collection letter is at the heart of this litigation,
the class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable.
B. There are questions of law and fact common to the class and these questions

predominate over any questions affecting only individual class members. The
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principal question presented by this claim is whether the Defendants violated
the FDCPA.

C. The only individual issue is the identification of the consumers who received
such collection letters (i.e. the class members), a matter capable of ministerial
determination from the records of Defendants.

D. The claims of the Plaintiff are typical of those of the class members. All are
based on the same facts and legal theories.

E. The Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent the class members’
interests. The Plaintiff has retained counsel experienced in bringing class
actions and collection-abuse claims. The Plaintiff's interests are consistent
with those of the members of the class.

A class action is superior for the fair and efficient adjudication of the class members’
claims. Congress specifically envisions class actions as a principal means of enforcing
the FDCPA. 15 U.S.C. § 1692(k). The members of the class are generally
unsophisticated individuals, whose rights will not be vindicated in the absence of a class
action. Prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the classes would
create the risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications resulting in the establishment of
inconsistent or varying standards for the parties and would not be in the interest of
judicial economy.

If the facts are discovered to be appropriate, the Plaintiff will seek to certify a class
pursuant to Rule 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

Collection attempts, such as those made by the Defendants are to be evaluated by the

objective standard of the hypothetical “least sophisticated consumer.”
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Violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act

43.  The Defendants' actions as set forth above in the within complaint violates the Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act.

44,  Because the Defendants violated the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the Plaintiff and
the members of the class are entitled to damages in accordance with the Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, respectfully requests preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, and that

this Court enter judgment in his favor and against the Defendants and award damages as follows:

A. Statutory damages provided under the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1692(Kk);
B. Attorney fees, litigation expenses and costs incurred in bringing this action;
and
C. Any other relief that this Court deems appropriate and just under the
circumstances.
Dated: Woodmere, New York

January 2, 2018

/s/ Adam J. Fishbein
Adam J. Fishbein, P.C. (AF-9508)
Attorney At Law
Attorney for the Plaintiff
735 Central Avenue
Woodmere, New York 11598
Telephone: (516) 668-6945
Email: fishbeinadamj@gmail.com

Plaintiff requests trial by jury on all issues so triable.

/s/ Adam J. Fishbein
Adam J. Fishbein (AF-9508)
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Management, Inc.

2365 Northside Drive Suite 300

San Diego, CA 92108

Comenity Capital Bank

Original Account Number [ o799

Midland Credit Management, Inc.

er [ 51

Midland Funding LLC
- 5$3,676.00

Call (800) 939-2353 by
03-04-2017 to
Discuss Options

01-18-2017
Account Details
Original Creditor
P5T43010  prae Current Servicer
EN¥Sharon @ 3 MCM Account Numb
< Current Owner
Current Balance
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Please Call

Get rid of this debt and get on
with your life.

This account may be
forwarded to an attorney in
your state.

Once your account is paid:

— Collection calls will stop
on this account

— Collection letters will stop
on this account

Reply By
03-04-2017

Call (800) 939-2353
Sun-Th: 5am-9pm PT;
Fri-Sat:5am-=4:30pm PT;

midlandcreditonline.com

g (800) 939-2353

RE Comenity Capital Bank Bed Bath and Beyond

Dear Ella,

Welcome! On 12-30-2016, your Comenity Capital Bank/Bed Bath and Beyond account was sold to
Midland Funding LLC, which is now the sole owner of this debt. Midland Credit Management, Inc.
(“MCM”), a debt collection company, will be collecting on, and servicing your account, on behalf of
Midland Funding LLC.

Midland Credit Management, Inc. is considering forwarding this account to an attorney in your state
for possible litigation. However, such forwarding will not occur until after the expiration of the
validation period described on the back of this letter. Upon receipt of this notice, please call to
discuss your options.

If we don’t hear from you or receive payment by 03-04-2017, we may proceed with forwarding this
account to an attorney.

In addition to the validation rights described on the back of this letter, here are some possible
options:

- Pay your full balance of $3,676.00

- Call us to see how to qualify for discounts and payment plans.

LET US HELP YOU! If the account goes to an attorney, our flexible options may no longer be available
to you. There still is an opportunity to make arrangements with us. We encourage you to call us:
(800) 939-2353.

Sincerely,
Tuw Boliun

Tim Bolin, Division Manager

We are not obligated to renew any offers provided.

Midland Credit Management, Inc
E midlandcreditonline.com g P.O. Box 60578

Los Angeles, CA 90060-0578

PLEASE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT DISCLOSURE INFORMATION

MCM Account Number
Current Balance

C—I= Manage Your Account Online
$3,676.00 | midlandcreditonline.com

Total Enclosed

8

) Important Payment Information

Mail Payments to:

Midland Credit Management, Inc

P.O. Box 60578

Los Angeles, CA 90060-0578

Make checks payable to:
Midland Credit Management
Enter your MCM Account # on all payments

(800) 939-2353

se habla espanol
(855) 983-6352

RVO1
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Please understand this is a communication from a debt collector. This is an attempt to collect a debt.
Any information obtained will be used for that purpose.

) Ud d e O U

‘Basic Information =~

D

- S e
SR E TR
ek e i SR

Original Creditor

Comenity Capital Bank

Current Creditor

Midland Funding LLC

Original Account
Number

[ Jovoo

Current Servicer

Midland Credit Management, Inc.

Charge-Off Balance

Charge-Off Date |

s

07-29-2016

~__Additional Information

$3,676.00

Charge-off Amount $3,676.00 Last Payment Date:
+ Post Charge-off Interest Accrued $0.00 12-21-2015
+ Post Charge-off Fees Accrued $0.00
Payments and Credits $0.00
Current Balance $3,676.00 DatoloE Betanlts

01-31-2016

___Important

formation

Send disputes or an instrument tendered
as full satisfaction of a debt to:

Attn: Consumer Support Services
2365 Northside Drive Suite 300
San Diego, CA 92108

You may also call (800) 939-2353

Physical Payments for Colorado Residents:
80 Garden Center

Suite 3
Broomfield, CO 80020
Phone (303) 920-4763

Send Payments to:

Midland Credit Management, Inc
P.O. Box 60578

Los Angeles, CA 90060-0578

The records associated with the Comenity Capital Bank account purchased by Midland Funding LLC, reflect that you are obligated
on this account, which is in default. As the owner of this account, but subject to the rights described below, Midland Funding LLC is
entitled to payment of this account. All communication regarding this account should be addressed to MCM and not the previous
owner.

Unless you notify MCM within thirty (30) days after receiving this notice that you dispute the validity of the debt, or any portion
thereof, MCM will assume this debt to be valid. If you notify MCM, in writing, within thirty (30) days after receiving this notice
that the debt, or any portion thereof, is disputed, MCM will obtain verification of the debt or a copy of a judgment (if there is a
judgment) and MCM will mail you a copy of such verification or judgment. If you request, in writing, within thirty (30) days after
receiving this notice, MCM will provide you with the name and address of the original creditor.

If an attorney represents you with regard to this debt, please refer this letter to your attorney. Likewise, if you are involved in an
active bankruptcy case, or if this debt has been discharged in a bankruptcy case, please refer this letter to your bankruptcy
attorney so that we may be notified.

Please remember, even if you make a payment within thirty (30) days after receiving this notice, you still have the remainder of
the thirty (30) days to exercise the rights described above.

We are required under state law to notify consumers of the following rights. This list does not contain a complete list of the
rights consumers have under state and federal law:

You are hereby notified that a negative report on your credit record may be submitted to a credit reporting agency if you fail to
meet the terms of your credit obligations.

IF YOU LIVE IN NEW YORK CITY, THIS APPLIES TO YOU: New York City Department of Consumer Affairs License Number 1140603,
1207829, 1207820, 1227728, 2022587, 2023151, 2023152, 2027429, 2027430, 2027431

ADDITIONAL REQUIRED INITIAL DISCLOSURES AND ACCOUNT INFORMATION:
Debt collectors are prohibited by 15 USC §1692 et seq. from engaging in abusive, deceptive and unfair collection efforts, including

the use or threat of violence, the use of obscene or profane language, and repeated phone calls with the intent to annoy, abuse or
harass.

If a creditor or debt collector receives a money judgment against you in court, state and federal laws may prevent the following
types of income from being taken to pay the debt:

¢ Supplemental Security income (SSI); s Workers’ compensation benefits;
e Social Security; e Public or private pensions;
e Public assistance (welfare); e Veterans’ benefits;

* Spousal support, maintenance (alimony) or child support; e
* Unemployment benefits;
¢ Disability benefits; °

Federal student loans, federal student grants, and federal
work study funds; and

Ninety percent of your wages or salary earned in the last
sixty days.

VALD
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Eastern District of New Y ork

Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No.

N N N N N N N N N N N N

Defendant(s)
SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

DOUGLAS C. PALMER
CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-07048-DLI-SMG

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

3 1 personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ;or

3 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)
, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,
on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

(A | served the summons on (name of individual) , Who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ;or
3 | returned the summons unexecuted because por
(A Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

i Seers |
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The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as
provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the

purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)
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(IN'U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

Il. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X’” in One Box Only)
(For Diversity Cases Only)
P

and One Box for Defendant)
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A 1 U.S. Government A 3 Federal Question TF DEF PTF DEF
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3 210 Land Condemnation 3 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: 3 791 Employee Retirement
O 220 Foreclosure O 441 Voting O 463 Alien Detainee Income Security Act
0 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 3 442 Employment 3 510 Motions to Vacate
0 240 Torts to Land 3 443 Housing/ Sentence
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CERTIFICATION OF ARBITRATION ELIGIBILITY

Local Arbitration Rule 83.10 provides that with certain exceptions, actions seeking money damages only in an amount not in excess of $150,000,
exclusive of interest and costs, are eligible for compulsory arbitration. The amount of damages is presumed to be below the threshold amount unless a
certification to the contrary is filed.

1, , counsel for , do hereby certify that the above captioned civil action
is ineligible for compulsory arbitration for the following reason(s):

D monetary damages sought are in excess of $150,000, exclusive of interest and costs,

E the complaint seeks injunctive relief,

E the matter is otherwise ineligible for the following reason class action

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT - FEDERAL RULES CIVIL PROCEDURE 7.1

Identify any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation that owns 10% or more or its stocks:

RELATED CASE STATEMENT (Section VIl on the Front of this Form)

Please list all cases that are arguably related pursuant to Division of Business Rule 50.3.1 in Section VIII on the front of this form. Rule 50.3.1 (a) provides that “A civil case is “related”
to another civil case for purposes of this guideline when, because of the similarity of facts and legal issues or because the cases arise from the same transactions or events, a
substantial saving of judicial resources is likely to result from assigning both cases to the same judge and magistrate judge.” Rule 50.3.1 (b) provides that “ A civil case shall not be
deemed “related” to another civil case merely because the civil case: (A) involves identical legal issues, or (B) involves the same parties.” Rule 50.3.1 (c) further provides that
“Presumptively, and subject to the power of a judge to determine otherwise pursuant to paragraph (d), civil cases shall not be deemed to be “related” unless both cases are still
pending before the court.”

NY-E DIVISION OF BUSINESS RULE 50.1(d)(2)

1) Is the civil action being filed in the Eastern District removed from a New York State Court located in Nassau or Suffolk
County? O Yes O nNo

2) If you answered “no” above:
a) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in Nassau or Suffolk
County? D Yes E No
b) Did the events or omissions giving rise to the claim or claims, or a substantial part thereof, occur in the Eastern
District? [0 Yes No

c) If this is a Fair Debt Collection Practice Act case, specify the County in which the offending communication was
received:

If your answer to question 2 (b) is “No,” does the defendant (or a majority of the defendants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or
Suffolk County, or, in an inte?leader action, does the claimant (or a majority of the claimants, if there is more than one) reside in Nassau or
Suffolk County? €s O No

(Note: A corporation shall be considered a resident of the County in which it has the most significant contacts).

BAR ADMISSION

IZ‘nly admitted in the Eastern District of New York and currently a member in good standing of the bar of this court.
E Yes D No

Are you currently the subject of any disciplinary action (s) in this or any other state or federal court?

1 m|

Yes (If yes, please explain E No

| certify the accuracy of all information provided above.

i
Signature: e e

I

Last Modified: 11/27/2017
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